Please find below our specific comments regarding specific questions raised in the Request for Information (RFI) Docket No. 090309298-9299-01 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 Broadband Initiatives:

Executive Summary

As stated in "the purposes of the grant program", the Recovery Act establishes five purposes for the BTOP grant program. We believe that applicants should be encouraged to address more than one purpose by receiving a higher percentage of grant funds.  This can be accomplished by using a “weighted grading system”, (see attached spreadsheet example).  We also feel that the weighted grading system will assist in accomplishing a number of other goals.  For example, in identifying and measuring “innovative” programs, in the evaluation of programs based on “self-sustainability” of the programs and in complying with the administration’s goal of “transparency in government”.
We completely agree with the “technologically neutral fashion” in which the statute was written because of the well-known fact that technologies change so quickly.  We strongly feel that specific technologies and/or Internet Service Providers (ISPs) should NOT be favored and feel that the weighted grading system will assist in accomplishing this objective.
We also agree with the “technically astute” interested parties, that there should be flexibility in defining terms described in the statute because of the various technologies to be used.  Also, as this program is looking for new, innovative, self-sustaining ideas, we would not want to limit innovative ideas.  Even defining “broadband” is difficult, as most technologies are IP packet-based, shared technologies, and as we have seen through sophisticated compression techniques (i.e. ITU H.264 standard), exceptional video phone connections at rates as low as 128 kbps can be very successful.
We look forward to working with your Agencies on these programs.
1.a.
Should a certain percentage of grant funds be apportioned to each category?

No, as applicants should be encouraged to address more than one purpose by receiving a higher percentage of grant funds.  This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

1.b.
Should applicants be encouraged to address more than one purpose?

Yes, applicants should be encouraged to address more than one purpose by receiving a higher percentage of grant funds.  This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

1.c. 
How should the BTOP leverage or respond to the other broadband–related portions of the Recovery Act, including the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) grants and loans program as well as the portions of the Recovery Act that address smart grids, health information technology, education, and transportation infrastructure?

The applicants should be encouraged to address more than one purpose by receiving a higher percentage of grant funds. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

2.d.
How should NTIA ensure that projects proposed by states are well executed and produce worthwhile and measurable results?

Due to “transparency in government” goals, the NTIA should use the same measurement criteria developed for the other eligible grant recipients.
3.
What standard should and NTIA apply to determine whether it is in the public interest that entities other than those described in Section 6001 (e) (1) (A) and (B) should be eligible for grant awards?

Due to “transparency in government” goals, the NTIA should use the same measurement criteria developed for the other eligible grant recipients.

4.a.
What factors should NTIA consider in establishing selection criteria for grant awards?

As stated in "the purposes of the grant program", the Recovery Act establishes five purposes for the BTOP grant program. Applicants should be encouraged to address more than one purpose by receiving a higher percentage of grant funds.  This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

How can NTIA determine that a Federal funding need exist and that private investment is not displaced?

If private funding is already fully or partially in place, then there is no need for Federal funding, as this program is looking for new, innovative, self-sustaining ideas.  This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

How should the long-term feasibility of the investment be judged?

Evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs including more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

4.b.
What should the weighting of these criteria be in determining consideration for grant and loan awards?

Please see attached spreadsheet example.

4.c.
How should the BTOP prioritize proposals that serve underserved or underserved areas?

This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

Should the BTOP consider USDA broadband grant awards and loans in establishing these priorities?

Yes, this can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

4.d.
Should priority be given to proposals that leverage other Recovery Act projects?

Yes, this can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

4.e.
Should priority be given to proposals that address several purposes, serve several of the populations identified in the Recovery Act, or provide service to different types of areas?

Yes, of course priority should be given to proposals that address several purposes, serve several of the populations identified in the Recovery Act, and provide service to different types of areas. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

4.f.
What factors should be given priority in determining whether proposals will encourage sustainable adoption of broadband service?

Retail price is a key factor when dealing with underserved communities. Evaluation of programs should also be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs including more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

4.g.
Should the fact that different technologies can provide different service characteristics, such as speed and use of dedicated or shared links, be considered given the statute's direction that, to the extent practicable, the purposes of the statute should be promoted in a technologically neutral fashion?

No, because the purposes of the statute state “technologically neutral fashion” and the fact that technologies change so quickly.  Technologies should NOT be considered.

4.h.
What role, if any, should retail price play in the grant program?


A major role, as retail price is a key factor when dealing with underserved communities. Evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs including more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

5.a 
What mechanisms for distributing stimulus funds should be used by NTIA and USDA in addition to traditional grant and loan programs?


None.
6.a.
What selection criteria should be applied to ensure the success of this aspect of the program?


Expanding public computer Center capacity can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

6.b.
What additional institutions other than community colleges and public libraries should be considered as eligible recipients under this program?


This question should be included in the grant RFP and the evaluation of programs should be based on the innovation and “self-sustainability” of the programs that include more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

7.a.
What selection criteria should be applied to assure the success of this program?

The evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs that include more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

7.b.
What measures should be used to determine whether such innovative programs have succeeded in creating sustainable adoption of broadband services?

The evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs that include more of the five purposes for the BTOP grant program. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

12.a.
What specific programmatic elements should both agencies adopt to ensure that grant funds are utilized in the most effective and efficient manner?

We agree that the broadband grant programs have many similar purposes.  The evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs that include more of the varied purposes for the grant programs. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

12.b.
In cases where proposals encompass both rural and non-rural areas, what programmatic elements should the agencies establish to ensure that worthy projects are funded by one or both programs in the most cost-effective manner without unjustly enriching the applicant(s)?

We agree that the broadband grant programs have many similar purposes.  The evaluation of programs should be based on the “self-sustainability” of the programs that include more of the varied purposes for the grant programs. This can be accomplished by a weighted grading system (see attached spreadsheet example).

13.a.
For purposes of the BTOP, how should NTIA, in consultation with the FCC, define the terms "unserved area" and "underserved area?"

“unserved area” – are small or large geographic areas of the United States that have no high-speed, broadband Internet Access.
“underserved area” – are small or large geographic areas of the United States that have high-speed, broadband Internet Access available, but due to the high monthly subscription costs, they have limited attractiveness to wide segments of the area’s population. 

13.b.
How should the BTOP define "broadband service?"

The FCC, as of 2008, defines broadband as anything above 768 kbps, however even this number should be taken as a goal, as all broadband technologies are IP packet-based, shared technologies, without support for “end-to-end” Quality of Service – QoS, (i.e. Wireless ISP cell areas, Cable Service Provider Head-ends, etc.).  World-wide, these existing broadband technologies support 768kbps intermittently.  There has been some discussion on support for video conferencing.  Currently, due to sophisticated compression techniques, we have seen exceptional video phone connections at rates as low as 128 kbps by leveraging the International Telecommunication Union (ITU) H.264 standard.  We believe that there should be flexibility and that this should be the low-end requirement of the definition of broadband.
13.b.1. Should BTOP establish threshold transmission speeds for purposes of analyzing whether an area is "unserved" or "underserved" and prioritizing grant awards? 


No. Please see the answer to 13.b.

Should thresholds be rigid or flexible?

We believe that there should be flexibility because of the various technologies to be used.

13.b.2
Should the BTOP establish different threshold speeds for different technology platforms?


No.  Please see the answer to 13.b.
13.b.3.
What should any such threshold speeds be, and how should they be measured and evaluated (E. G., advertised speed, average speed, typical speed, maximum speed)?

We believe that there should be flexibility because of the various technologies to be used.  Please see the answer to 13.b.
13.b.4
Should the threshold speeds be symmetrical or asymmetrical?

We believe that there should be flexibility because of the various technologies to be used.  Please see the answer to 13.b.
13.b.5
How should the BTOP consider the impacts of the use of shared facilities by service providers and of network congestion?

We believe that there should be flexibility because of the various technologies to be used.  Please see the answer to 13.b.
13.d.
Are there other terms in this section of the Recovery Act, such as "community anchor institutions," that NTIA should define to ensure the success of the grant program?  If so, what of those terms and how should those terms be defined, given the stated purposes of the Recovery Act?

We believe that there should be flexibility in defining these terms because of the various technologies to be used.  Also, as this program is looking for new, innovative, self-sustaining ideas, we would not want to limit pioneering ideas.  
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